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resources, transportation, farmland, 
land use, human health and safety, the 
socioeconomic environment, 
environmental justice, and cumulative 
effects. On March 3, 2010, the Rural 
Utilities Service published its Notice of 
Availability of the Draft EIS for the 
proposed project in the Federal 
Register. The 45-day comment period 
ended on April 19, 2010. Comments 
received on the Draft EIS were 
addressed in the Final EIS. 

After considering various ways to 
meet the reliability needs, Minnkota 
identified construction of the proposed 
Project as its best course of action. This 
EIS considered four route alternatives in 
terms of cost-effectiveness, technical 
feasibility, and environmental factors. 

The EIS analyzes in detail the no 
action alternative, the proposed action 
Route Alternative 4 and three other 
Route Alternatives. Route Alternative 4 
has been identified as the applicants’ 
preferred alternative, the federally 
preferred alternative and the 
environmentally preferred alternative. 

Because the proposed Project may 
involve action in floodplains or 
wetlands, this Notice of Availability 
also serves as a notice of proposed 
floodplain or wetland action. 

Any action by RUS related to the 
proposed Project will be subject to, and 
contingent upon, compliance with all 
relevant Federal, state and local 
environmental laws and regulations, 
and completion of the environmental 
review requirements as prescribed in 
RUS’s Environmental Policies and 
Procedures, 7 CFR part 1794, as 
amended. 

Dated: September 7, 2010. 
Nivin Elgohary, 
Acting Assistant Administrator, Electric 
Programs. 
[FR Doc. 2010–22966 Filed 9–14–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE P 

COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS 

Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting 
of the South Dakota Advisory 
Committee 

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to 
the provisions of the rules and 
regulations of the U.S. Commission on 
Civil Rights (Commission), and the 
Federal Advisory Committee Act 
(FACA), that a planning meeting of the 
South Dakota Advisory Committee to 
the Commission will convene by 
conference call at 1 p.m. and end at 3 
p.m. on Tuesday, September 28, 2010. 
The purpose of the meeting is for the 
committee to discuss recent 

Commission and regional activities and 
current civil rights issues in the State 
and plan future activities. 

This conference call is available to the 
public through the following call-in 
number: 1–800–516–9896, access code: 
8334. Any interested member of the 
public may call this number and listen 
to the meeting. Callers can expect to 
incur charges made over wireless lines, 
and the Commission will not refund 
those charges incurred. Callers will 
incur no charge for calls using the call- 
in number over land-line connections. 
Persons with hearing impairments may 
also follow the proceedings by first 
calling the Federal Relay Service at 1– 
800–977–8339 and providing the 
Service with the conference call number 
and access code number. 

To ensure that the Commission 
secures an appropriate number of lines 
for the public, persons are asked to 
register by contacting the Rocky 
Mountain Regional Office at least ten 
(10) working days before the scheduled 
meeting date. 

Members of the public are entitled to 
submit written comments; the 
comments must be received in the 
regional office by October 28, 2010. The 
address is Rocky Mountain Regional 
Office, 999–18th Street, Suite 1380 
South, Denver, CO 80202; (303) 866– 
1040. Comments may be e-mailed to 
ebohor@usccr.gov. Records generated by 
this meeting may be inspected and 
reproduced at the Rocky Mountain 
Regional Office, as they become 
available, both before and after the 
meeting. Persons interested in the work 
of this advisory committee are advised 
to go to the Commission’s Web site, 
http://www.usccr.gov, or to contact the 
Rocky Mountain Regional Office at the 
above e-mail or street address. 

The meeting will be conducted 
pursuant to the provisions of the rules 
and regulations of the Commission and 
FACA. 

Dated in Washington, DC, on September 
10, 2010. 
Peter Minarik, 
Acting Chief, Regional Programs 
Coordination Unit. 
[FR Doc. 2010–22995 Filed 9–14–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6335–01–P 

COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS 

Sunshine Act Notice 

AGENCY: United States Commission on 
Civil Rights. 
ACTION: Notice of meeting. 

DATE AND TIME: Friday, September 24, 
2010; 9:30 a.m. EDT 

PLACE: 624 9th St., NW., Room 540, 
Washington, DC 20425. 

Meeting Agenda 

This meeting is open to the public. 
I. Approval of Agenda 
II. Program Planning 

• Approval of New Black Panther 
Party Enforcement Report 

• Consideration of Findings and 
Recommendations for Briefing 
Report on Health Care Disparities 

• Consideration of FY 2011 
Enforcement Report Topic 

• Consideration of Concept Paper for 
Briefing on the Department of 
Education’s Investigation of 
Disparate Impact in Student 
Discipline 

• Consideration of Policy on 
Commissioner Statements and 
Rebuttals 

• Update on Sex Discrimination in 
Liberal Arts College Admissions 
Project—Some of the discussion of 
this agenda item may be held in 
closed session. 

• Update on Clearinghouse Project 
III. State Advisory Committee Issues 

• Maine SAC 
• New Mexico SAC 

IV. Approval of Minutes of September 
10 Meeting 

V. Staff Director’s Report 
VI. Announcements 
VII. Adjourn 
CONTACT PERSON FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION: Lenore Ostrowsky, Acting 
Chief, Public Affairs Unit (202) 376– 
8591. TDD: (202) 376–8116. 

Persons with a disability requiring 
special services, such as an interpreter 
for the hearing impaired, should contact 
Pamela Dunston at least seven days 
prior to the meeting at 202–376–8105. 
TDD: (202) 376–8116. 

Dated: September 13, 2010. 
David Blackwood, 
General Counsel. 
[FR Doc. 2010–23184 Filed 9–13–10; 4:15 pm] 

BILLING CODE 6335–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Bureau of Industry and Security 

Action Affecting Export Privileges; 
Mahan Airways and Gatewick LLC 

Mahan Airways, Mahan Tower, No. 21, 
Azadegan St., M.A. Jenah Exp. Way, 
Tehran, Iran; and Gatewick LLC, 
a/k/a Gatewick Freight & Cargo 
Services, a/k/a/Gatewick Aviation 
Services, G#22 Dubai Airport Free 
Zone, P.O. Box 393754, Dubai, United 
Arab Emirates; and P.O. Box 52404, 
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1 The Related Persons Order was published in the 
Federal Register on July 24, 2008. 

2 The September 17, 2008 Renewal Order was 
published in the Federal Register on October 1, 
2008. The March 16, 2009 Renewal Order was 
published in the Federal Register on March 25, 
2009. 

3 The September 11, 2009 Renewal Order was 
published in the Federal Register on September 18, 
2009. 

4 Engaging in conduct prohibited by a denial 
order violates the Regulations. 15 CFR 764.2(a) and 
(k). 

Dubai, United Arab Emirates; and 
Mohamed Abdulla Alqaz Building, Al 
Maktoum Street, Al Rigga, Dubai, 
United Arab Emirates. 

Order Renewing Order Temporarily 
Denying Export Privileges and Also 
Making That Temporary Denial of 
Export Privileges Applicable to Related 
Person 

Pursuant to Section 766.24 of the 
Export Administration Regulations, 15 
CFR Parts 730–774 (2010) (‘‘EAR’’ or the 
‘‘Regulations’’), I hereby grant the 
request of the Bureau of Industry and 
Security (‘‘BIS’’) to renew for 180 days 
the Order Temporarily Denying the 
Export Privileges of Mahan Airways 
(‘‘TDO’’), as I find that renewal of the 
TDO is necessary in the public interest 
to prevent an imminent violation of the 
EAR. Additionally, pursuant to Section 
766.23 of the Regulations, including the 
provision of notice and an opportunity 
to respond, I find it necessary to add the 
following entity as a related person: 
Gatewick LLC, a/k/a Gatewick Freight & 

Cargo Services, a/k/a Gatewick 
Aviation Services, G#22 Dubai 
Airport Free Zone, P.O. Box 393754, 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates; and 
P.O. Box 52404, Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates; and Mohamed Abdulla 
Alqaz Building, Al Maktoum Street, 
Al Rigga, Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates. 

I. Procedural History 
On March 17, 2008, Darryl W. 

Jackson, the then-Assistant Secretary of 
Commerce for Export Enforcement 
(‘‘Assistant Secretary’’), signed a TDO 
denying Mahan Airways’ export 
privileges for a period of 180 days on 
the grounds that its issuance was 
necessary in the public interest to 
prevent an imminent violation of the 
Regulations. The TDO also named as 
denied persons Blue Airways, of 
Yerevan, Armenia (‘‘Blue Airways of 
Armenia’’), as well as the ‘‘Balli Group 
Respondents,’’ namely, Balli Group PLC, 
Balli Aviation, Balli Holdings, Vahid 
Alaghband, Hassan Alaghband, Blue 
Sky One Ltd., Blue Sky Two Ltd., Blue 
Sky Three Ltd., Blue Sky Four Ltd., Blue 
Sky Five Ltd., and Blue Sky Six Ltd., all 
of the United Kingdom. The TDO was 
issued ex parte pursuant to Section 
766.24(a), and went into effect on March 
21, 2008, the date it was published in 
the Federal Register. 

On July 18, 2008, in accordance with 
Section 766.23 of the Regulations, 
Assistant Secretary Jackson issued an 
Order adding to the TDO both Blue 
Airways FZE, of Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates (‘‘the UAE’’), and Blue 
Airways, also of Dubai, United Arab 

Emirates (‘‘Blue Airways UAE’’), as 
persons related to Blue Airways of 
Armenia. (Blue Airways of Armenia, 
Blue Airways FZE, and Blue Airways 
UAE are hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the ‘‘Blue Airways Respondents’’).1 

On September 17, 2008, Assistant 
Secretary Jackson renewed the TDO for 
an additional 180 days in accordance 
with Section 766.24 of the Regulations, 
via an order effective upon issuance, 
and on March 16, 2009, the TDO was 
similarly renewed by then-Acting 
Assistant Secretary Kevin Delli-Colli.2 
On September 11, 2009, Acting 
Assistant Secretary Delli-Colli renewed 
the TDO for an additional 180 days 
against Mahan Airways.3 BIS did not 
seek renewal of the TDO against the 
Blue Airways Respondents, which BIS 
believed at that time had ceased 
operating, or against the Balli Group 
Respondents. 

On March 9, 2010, I renewed the TDO 
against Mahan Airways for an 
additional 180 days. That renewal was 
effective upon issuance and was 
published in the Federal Register on 
March 18, 2010. 

On August 13, 2010, BIS, through its 
Office of Export Enforcement (‘‘OEE’’), 
filed a written request for renewal of the 
TDO against Mahan Airways for an 
additional 180 days, and served a copy 
of its request on Mahan in accordance 
with Section 766.5 of the Regulations. 
No opposition to renewal of the TDO 
has been received from Mahan Airways. 

Additionally, BIS requested that I add 
Gatewick LLC (‘‘Gatewick’’) to the TDO 
as a related person in accordance with 
Section 766.23. Gatewick was provided 
notice of BIS’s intent to add it to the 
TDO and on August 26, 2010, submitted 
a written opposition. 

II. Renewal of the TDO 

A. Legal Standard 
Pursuant to Section 766.24(d)(3) of 

the EAR, the sole issue to be considered 
in determining whether to continue a 
TDO is whether the TDO should be 
renewed to prevent an ‘‘imminent’’ 
violation of the EAR as defined in 
Section 766.24. ‘‘A violation may be 
‘imminent’ either in time or in degree of 
likelihood.’’ 15 CFR 766.24(b)(3). BIS 
may show ‘‘either that a violation is 
about to occur, or that the general 

circumstances of the matter under 
investigation or case under criminal or 
administrative charges demonstrate a 
likelihood of future violations.’’ Id. As to 
the likelihood of future violations, BIS 
may show that ‘‘the violation under 
investigation or charges is significant, 
deliberate, covert and/or likely to occur 
again, rather than technical and 
negligent [.]’’ Id. A ‘‘lack of information 
establishing the precise time a violation 
may occur does not preclude a finding 
that a violation is imminent, so long as 
there is sufficient reason to believe the 
likelihood of a violation.’’ Id. 

B. The TDO and BIS’s Request for 
Renewal 

OEE’s request for renewal is based 
upon the facts underlying the issuance 
of the initial TDO and the TDO renewals 
in this matter and the evidence 
developed over the course of this 
investigation indicating Mahan 
Airways’ clear willingness to continue 
to disregard U.S. export controls and the 
TDO. The initial TDO was issued as a 
result of evidence that showed that 
Mahan Airways and other parties 
engaged in conduct prohibited by the 
EAR by knowingly re-exporting to Iran 
three U.S.-origin aircraft, specifically 
Boeing 747s (‘‘Aircraft 1–3’’), items 
subject to the EAR and classified under 
Export Control Classification Number 
(‘‘ECCN’’) 9A991.b, without the required 
U.S. Government authorization. Further 
evidence submitted by BIS indicated 
that Mahan Airways was involved in the 
attempted re-export of three additional 
U.S.-origin Boeing 747s (‘‘Aircraft 4–6’’) 
to Iran. 

As discussed in the September 17, 
2008 TDO Renewal Order, evidence 
presented by BIS indicated that Aircraft 
1–3 continued to be flown on Mahan 
Airways’ routes after issuance of the 
TDO, in violation of the Regulations and 
the TDO itself.4 It also showed that 
Aircraft 1–3 had been flown in further 
violation of the Regulations and the 
TDO on the routes of Iran Air, an 
Iranian Government airline. In addition, 
as more fully discussed in the March 16, 
2009 Renewal Order, in October 2008, 
Mahan Airways caused Aircraft 1–3 to 
be deregistered from the Armenian civil 
aircraft registry and subsequently 
registered the aircraft in Iran. The 
aircraft were relocated to Iran and were 
issued Iranian tail numbers, including 
EP–MNA and EP–MNB, and continued 
to be operated on Mahan Airways’ 
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5 The third Boeing 747 appeared to have 
undergone significant service maintenance and may 
not have been operational at the time of the March 
9, 2010 Renewal Order. 

6 My findings are made pursuant to Section 
766.24 and the Regulations, and are not based on 
the contempt finding against Mahan Airways in the 
U.K. litigation. I note, however, that Mahan 
Airways’ statements and actions in that litigation 
are consistent with my findings here. 

routes in violation of the Regulations 
and the TDO. 

Moreover, as discussed in the 
September 11, 2009 and March 9, 2010 
Renewal Orders, Mahan Airways 
continued to operate at least two of 
Aircraft 1–3 in violation of the 
Regulations and the TDO,5 and also 
committed an additional knowing and 
willful violation of the Regulations and 
the TDO when it negotiated for and 
acquired an additional U.S.-origin 
aircraft. The additional aircraft was an 
MD–82 aircraft, which was 
subsequently painted in Mahan Airways 
livery and flown on multiple Mahan 
Airways’ routes under tail number TC– 
TUA. 

The March 9, 2010 Renewal Order 
also noted that a court in the United 
Kingdom (‘‘U.K.’’) had found Mahan 
Airways in contempt of court on 
February 1, 2010, for failing to comply 
with that court’s December 21, 2009 and 
January 12, 2010 orders compelling 
Mahan Airways to remove the Boeing 
747s from Iran and ground them in the 
Netherlands. Mahan Airways and the 
Balli Group Respondents have been 
litigating before the U.K. court 
concerning ownership and control of 
Aircraft 1–3. Blue Airways LLC also has 
been a party to that litigation. In a letter 
to the U.K. court dated January 12, 2010, 
Mahan Airways’ Chairman indicated, 
inter alia, that Mahan Airways opposes 
U.S. Government actions against Iran, 
that it continued to operate the aircraft 
on its routes in and out of Tehran (and 
had 158,000 ‘‘forward bookings’’ for 
these aircraft), and that it wished to 
continue to do so and would pay 
damages if required by that court, rather 
than ground the aircraft. 

OEE’s evidence indicates that Aircraft 
1–3 remain in Mahan Airways’ 
possession, control, and livery in 
Tehran, Iran. These aircraft also remain, 
to BIS’s knowledge, airworthy. 

OEE also has submitted evidence that 
Mahan Airways’ violations of the TDO 
have extended beyond operating U.S.- 
origin aircraft in violation of the TDO 
and attempting to acquire additional 
U.S.-origin aircraft. In February 2009, 
while subject to the TDO, Mahan 
Airways participated in the export of 
computer motherboards, items subject 
to the Regulations and designated as 
EAR99, from the United States to Iran, 
via the UAE, in violation of both the 
TDO and the Regulations, by 
transporting and/or forwarding the 
computer equipment from the UAE to 

Iran. Mahan Airways’ violations were 
facilitated by Gatewick, which not only 
participated in the transaction, but also 
has stated to BIS that it is Mahan 
Airways’ sole booking agent for cargo 
and freight forwarding services in the 
UAE. 

As discussed below, renewal of the 
TDO against Mahan is necessary and 
appropriate. Renewal is necessary with 
or without the evidence relating to 
Mahan Airways’ violations regarding 
the computer motherboards, but that 
evidence is in any event also pertinent 
to BIS’s request to add Gatewick to the 
TDO as a related person. 

C. Findings 

Under the applicable standard set 
forth in Section 766.24 of the 
Regulations and my review of the record 
here, I find that the evidence presented 
by BIS convincingly demonstrates that 
Mahan Airways has repeatedly violated 
the EAR and the TDO, that such 
knowing violations have been 
significant, deliberate and covert, and 
that there is a likelihood of future 
violations. I find that, as alleged by OEE, 
the violations have involved both U.S.- 
origin aircraft and computer equipment 
that are subject to the Regulations. A 
renewal of the TDO is needed to give 
notice to persons and companies in the 
United States and abroad that they 
should continue to cease dealing with 
Mahan Airways in export transactions 
involving items subject to the EAR. 
Such a TDO is consistent with the 
public interest to prevent imminent 
violation of the EAR.6 

Accordingly, I find pursuant to 
Section 766.24 that renewal of the TDO 
for 180 days against Mahan Airways is 
necessary in the public interest to 
prevent an imminent violation of the 
EAR. 

III. Addition of Related Person 

A. Legal Standard 

Section 766.23 of the Regulations 
provides that ‘‘[i]n order to prevent 
evasion, certain types of orders under 
this part may be made applicable not 
only to the respondent, but also to other 
persons then or thereafter related to the 
respondent by ownership, control, 
position of responsibility, affiliation, or 
other connection in the conduct of trade 
or business. Orders that may be made 
applicable to related persons include 
those that deny or affect export 

privileges, including temporary denial 
orders * * *’’ 15 CFR 766.23(a). 

B. Analysis and Findings 
OEE has requested that Gatewick be 

added as a related person in order to 
prevent evasion of the TDO. OEE’s 
request includes evidence, confirmed in 
writing by Gatewick, that indicates that 
a significant and on-going business 
connection between Gatewick and 
Mahan Airways. Gatewick officials 
previously told BIS during a 2009 post 
shipment verification that it acts as 
Mahan Airways’ sole booking agent for 
cargo and freight forwarding services in 
the UAE, a major transshipment hub. 
This business connection was again 
confirmed by Gatewick in its written 
opposition to the related person’s notice 
it received from BIS. Gatewick’s 
opposition also included a copy of its 
General Cargo Sales Agreement (‘‘GSA’’) 
with Mahan Airways, which remains in 
effect. Through this significant business 
relationship, Gatewick has the ability, 
with Mahan Airways’ authorization and 
agreement, to use Mahan’s import code 
to clear UAE customs and then re-book 
cargo on outbound Mahan flights, 
including to Iran. 

In its August 26, 2010 opposition, 
Gatewick admits to having a current 
GSA with Mahan Airways, but it asserts 
that it is not owned by Mahan and does 
not have any common directors with 
Mahan, and thus should not be added 
to the TDO. Gatewick’s submission 
includes copies of corporate registration 
documents in addition to the GSA with 
Mahan. However, rather than distancing 
itself from Mahan Airways and its co- 
conspirators, the documents provided 
by Gatewick actually reveal other 
connections or relationships between 
Gatewick and Mahan Airways, as well 
as the Blue Airways Respondents. 

The GSA with Mahan Airways was 
signed on Gatewick’s behalf by its 
Managing Director, Pejman Mahmood 
Kosarayanifard, also known as Kosarian 
Fard, who also owns 35% of Gatewick 
according to corporate registration 
documents submitted by the company. 
Kosarian Fard also played an important 
role in Mahan Airways’ acquisition of 
Aircraft 1–3 discussed above, as 
indicated by evidence obtained by BIS 
during its investigation and as 
acknowledged by Kosarian Fard in his 
testimony in the U.K. litigation 
referenced above. Kosarian Fard was a 
founder, the majority shareholder, and 
the Commercial Director of Blue 
Airways of Armenia. In that capacity, he 
signed the Boeing 747 lease agreements 
with the Balli Group that ultimately led 
to Mahan Airways’ acquisition of 
Aircraft 1–3. 
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7 A party named or added to temporary denial 
order as a related person may appeal its inclusion 
as a related person, but not the underlying basis for 
the issuance of the TDO. See Section 766.23(c). 

8 A party named or added as a related person may 
not oppose the issuance or renewal of a temporary 
denial order, but may file an appeal in accordance 
with Section 766.23(c). See also note 7, supra. 

Kosarian Fard’s written testimony in 
the U.K. litigation included the 
following concerning his ‘‘close 
relationship’’ with Mahan Airways and 
some of the acts he took at its direction: 

As I have said, I was majority shareholder 
of Blue [Airways] but in the summer of 2007, 
I agreed to sell a 51% stake in Blue to Skyco 
(UK) Ltd. I did this at the request of Mahan. 
Given my close relationship with Mahan, I 
did not ask questions but, again, acted on the 
basis of the trust I had in Mr. Arabnejad and 
Mr. Mahmoudi [two Mahan Airways’ 
directors]. 

Kosarian Fard Written Statement to U.K. 
Court (signed and dated May 27, 2009 
by hand), at page 7, paragraph 12. 

The record also shows that Gatewick 
is located at the same G#22 Dubai 
Airport Free Zone location formerly 
used by the Blue Airways FZE and Blue 
Airways UAE. 

Based on the information provided by 
OEE and Gatewick’s submission, I find 
that Gatewick’s significant and on-going 
business relationship and/or 
connections with Mahan Airways 
satisfies the requirements of Section 
766.23, and that Gatewick’s addition to 
the TDO as a related person is necessary 
to prevent evasion. This is demonstrated 
not only by the nature and significance 
of Gatewick’s relationship with Mahan 
Airways and its stated role as Mahan 
Airways’ sole booking agent in the UAE 
for Mahan’s cargo and freight 
forwarding services, but also by 
Gatewick’s participation with Mahan 
Airways in the 2009 transaction 
involving the export of computer 
motherboards to Iran, via the UAE, in 
violation of the outstanding TDO against 
Mahan. It is further demonstrated by 
Kosarian Fard’s central role at Gatewick, 
as Managing Director and owner, his 
admitted close relationship with Mahan 
Airways, and the prominent role he 
played in the unlawful re-export of 
Aircraft 1–3 to Mahan. 

IV. Order 
It is therefore ordered: 
First, that MAHAN AIRWAYS, Mahan 

Tower, No. 21, Azadegan St., M.A. 
Jenah Exp.Way, Tehran, Iran, and 
GATEWICK LLC, A/K/A GATEWICK 
FREIGHT & CARGO SERVICES, A/K/A 
GATEWICK AVIATION SERVICE, G#22 
Dubai Airport Free Zone, P.O. Box 
393754, Dubai, United Arab Emirates, 
and P.O. Box 52404, Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates, and Mohamed Abdulla Alqaz 
Building, Al Maktoum Street, Al Rigga, 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates (each a 
‘‘Denied Person’’ and collectively the 
‘‘Denied Persons’’), may not, directly or 
indirectly, participate in any way in any 
transaction involving any commodity, 
software or technology (hereinafter 

collectively referred to as ‘‘item’’) 
exported or to be exported from the 
United States that is subject to the 
Export Administration Regulations 
(‘‘EAR’’), or in any other activity subject 
to the EAR including, but not limited to: 

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using 
any license, License Exception, or 
export control document; 

B. Carrying on negotiations 
concerning, or ordering, buying, 
receiving, using, selling, delivering, 
storing, disposing of, forwarding, 
transporting, financing, or otherwise 
servicing in any way, any transaction 
involving any item exported or to be 
exported from the United States that is 
subject to the EAR, or in any other 
activity subject to the EAR; or 

C. Benefiting in any way from any 
transaction involving any item exported 
or to be exported from the United States 
that is subject to the EAR, or in any 
other activity subject to the EAR. 

Second, that no person may, directly 
or indirectly, do any of the following: 

A. Export or reexport to or on behalf 
of a Denied Person any item subject to 
the EAR; 

B. Take any action that facilitates the 
acquisition or attempted acquisition by 
a Denied Person of the ownership, 
possession, or control of any item 
subject to the EAR that has been or will 
be exported from the United States, 
including financing or other support 
activities related to a transaction 
whereby a Denied Person acquires or 
attempts to acquire such ownership, 
possession or control; 

C. Take any action to acquire from or 
to facilitate the acquisition or attempted 
acquisition from a Denied Person of any 
item subject to the EAR that has been 
exported from the United States; 

D. Obtain from a Denied Person in the 
United States any item subject to the 
EAR with knowledge or reason to know 
that the item will be, or is intended to 
be, exported from the United States; or 

E. Engage in any transaction to service 
any item subject to the EAR that has 
been or will be exported from the 
United States and which is owned, 
possessed or controlled by a Denied 
Person, or service any item, of whatever 
origin, that is owned, possessed or 
controlled by a Denied Person if such 
service involves the use of any item 
subject to the EAR that has been or will 
be exported from the United States. For 
purposes of this paragraph, servicing 
means installation, maintenance, repair, 
modification or testing. 

Third, that, after notice and 
opportunity for comment as provided in 
section 766.23 of the EAR, any other 
person, firm, corporation, or business 
organization related to a Denied Person 

by affiliation, ownership, control, or 
position of responsibility in the conduct 
of trade or related services may also be 
made subject to the provisions of this 
Order. 

Fourth, that this Order does not 
prohibit any export, reexport, or other 
transaction subject to the EAR where the 
only items involved that are subject to 
the EAR are the foreign-produced direct 
product of U.S.-origin technology. 

In accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 766.24(e) and 766.23(c)(2) of 
the EAR, Mahan Airways and/or 
Gatewick LLC may, at any time, appeal 
this Order by filing a full written 
statement in support of the appeal with 
the Office of the Administrative Law 
Judge, U.S. Coast Guard ALJ Docketing 
Center, 40 South Gay Street, Baltimore, 
Maryland 21202–4022.7 

In accordance with the provisions of 
Section 766.24(d) of the EAR, BIS may 
seek renewal of this Order by filing a 
written request not later than 20 days 
before the expiration date. A renewal 
request may be opposed as provided in 
Section 766.24(d), by filing a written 
submission with the Assistant Secretary 
of Commerce for Export Enforcement, 
which must be received not later than 
seven days before the expiration date of 
the Order.8 

A copy of this Order shall be provided 
to Mahan Airways and Gatewick LLC 
and shall be published in the Federal 
Register. This Order is effective 
immediately and shall remain in effect 
for 180 days. 

Issued this 3rd day of September 2010. 
David W. Mills, 
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Export 
Enforcement. 
[FR Doc. 2010–23011 Filed 9–14–10; 8:45 am] 
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